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The Solicitation Amendment #013 is raised in regards to the following: 

1. The closing date of April 7, 2021, is postponed to June 2nd, 2021. 

2. To provide the power point presentation that was presented to industry on January 19, 2021. 

3. To add a professional service category as follow: 

Statement of Work, under Article 8.4 Professional Services 

INSERT

8.4.1  g) Human Factor services. Human Factor services include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1) Conduct task analysis to ensure that requirement statements consider user performance 
needs and are quantifiable by procurement standards; 

2) Conduct Integration Evaluations on new and modified clothing to ensure compatibility 
with existing clothing and personal equipment; and 

3) Assist in defining standards for anthropometric data gathering in support of design and 
acquisition. 

Annex A – Appendix 12 – Professional Services Classifications 

INSERT 

Insert Human Factor Specialist under Article 2 of Appendix 12, Professional Service category:  

HUMAN FACTOR (HF) SPECIALIST 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES
The HF Specialist’s minimum responsibilities include the following activities.

General 
Responsibilities

a) Consult with requirements staff to include consideration of Human Factors 
principles in the articulation of requirements; 

b) Conduct task analysis for clothing to ensure that requirement statements 
consider user performance needs and are quantifiable by procurement 
standards; 

c) Translate performance and user based requirements into measurable 
specifications; 

d) Preparation of technical documentation to propose solutions to Human 
Factors related issues; 

e) Conduct Integration Evaluations on new and modified clothing to ensure 
compatibility with existing clothing and personal equipment; 

f) Propose a level of user evaluation appropriate for the complexity and risk 
associated with a change to form, fit or function of existing pieces of clothing; 

g) Draft evaluation plans for requirement development or bid evaluation user 
trials, including defining the standards of assessment, control mechanisms to 
ensure valid results, and resource requirements; 

h) Participate in user evaluations for requirement development; 
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HUMAN FACTOR (HF) SPECIALIST 

i) Develop questionnaires to solicit feedback from user groups on existing 
clothing and recommendations for improvements; 

j) Develop focus group plans and participate in focus groups with users to elicit 
feedback on clothing and recommendations for improvements; 

k) Compile and analyze data from questionnaires and focus groups to provide 
summaries and statistical analyses of user input; 

l) Analyze available anthropometric data to propose clothing grading to address 
the user population; 

m) Assist in defining standards for anthropometric data gathering in support of 
design and acquisition; and 

n) Conduct literature reviews of Human Factors related research and 
publications. 

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
The HF Specialist must perform the following minimum Financial Services. 
Financial 
Responsibilities 

a) Developing cost estimates as part of planning for activities such as user trials, 
focus groups, etc. 

MANDATORY TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Number of years in this specific category performing 
activities similar to those described in this table 

a) Junior: < 5 years of experience; and 
b) Senior: > 5 years of experience 

Number of years of Clothing and Textile Industry 
experience Desired 

Reference projects required Yes 
Resume of proposed resource to be provided Yes 

Education 
A university undergraduate degree in Biomedical engineering, Biomechanical 
engineering, kinesiology or other equivalent program related to the application of 
Human Factors Engineering or Human Systems Integration. 

Certification Nil 
Language Fluent in English and functional in French 
The proposed HF Specialist must demonstrate experience in the activities described below. Concrete 
examples must be provided to demonstrate experience as listed below. 

General 
Experience 

a) Completion of user task analysis related to clothing or personal equipment; 
b) Definition of specifications based upon performance or user based requirements; 
c) Participation in integration evaluations related to clothing or personal equipment; 
d) Development of questionnaires to solicit feedback from users on existing clothing 

or personal equipment and recommendations for improvements; 
e) Planning of focus group plans to elicit user feedback on clothing or personal 

equipment and recommendations for improvements; 
f) Data analysis to provide summaries and statistical analyses of user input; and 
g) The application of anthropometric data to develop clothing grading. 

DESIRABLE TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

Other Project 
Experience 

a) Preparation of user trial evaluation plans and participation in user trial evaluations; 
b) Participation in focus groups with users to elicit feedback on clothing and 

recommendations for improvements; and 
c) Participation in anthropometric data gathering and/or surveys.
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 In the Basis of Payment under article 5.1.4 replace the table with this new updated table: 

Categories Hourly rates for 
Year 1 

Project Manager - Junior 
Project Manager - Senior 
Clothing/Textile Technologist - Junior 
Clothing/Textile Technologist - Senior 
Handwear/Knitted Footwear/Accessories Technologist – Junior 
Handwear/Knitted Footwear/Accessories Technologist – Senior 
Footwear Technologist – Junior 
Footwear Technologist - Senior 
Pattern, Design, Development and Sizing Technologist – Junior 
Pattern, Design, Development and Sizing Technologist - Senior 
Clothing and Personal Protection Equipment Design and 
Prototyping Technologist – Junior 
Clothing and Personal Protection Equipment Design and 
Prototyping Technologist - Senior 
Badges/Insignia/Ceremonial Accoutrements Technologist – 
Junior 
Badges/Insignia/Ceremonial Accoutrements Technologist - 
Senior 
Technical Writer 
Material Handler 
Data Analyst 
Human Factor Specialist - Junior 
Human Factor Specialist - Senior 
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4. To answer questions from Industry: 

Question 89 

Can you give an example of the calculation of the financial incentive for aboriginal procurement? 

Answer 89 

a. Answer to this question takes into account answer to question 90. 

b. During the year, you have procured before tax 3,000 items at $200 each from Company X, 2,500 
items at $300 each from Company Y and 5,000 hours of seamstress services at $15 per hour from 
Company Z. Company X, Y and Z are Aboriginal Businesses. For that year, Canada has incurred 
total costs of $55M under this contract. The amount paid by Canada for this distribution of DND-
owned inventory during the year is $2M. 

c. % Aboriginal Procurement = [(3,000*200) + (2,500*300) + (5,000*15)]/[55,000,000 – 2,000,000] * 
100 = 1,425,000/53,000,000 * 100 = 2.688%

d. Financial Incentive = 2.688%/10 * (55,000,000 – 2,000,000) = 0.002688 * 53,000,000 = $142,500

e. Because $142,500 is less than 1% of the subject year’s total costs ($550K), and 1% is the 
maximum financial incentive that can be awarded, the full $142,500 will be paid as incentive. 

Question 90 

The current calculation of % of Aboriginal procurement is = (Annual value of aboriginal procurement) / 
(Annual value of the Contract) X 100.   

Given stock transfer of DND-Owned goods in the first few years of the Contract, we request that the 
calculation be changed to:  
 
(Annual value of aboriginal procurement) / [(Annual value of the Contract) – (Annual value of DND-
owned goods distributed)] X 100. 

Answer 90 

Canada is in agreement with the proposed formula. Therefore, the formula in the Basis of Payment at 
article 9.2.2 will be modified as follow: 

Financial incentive ($) = (% aboriginal procurement / 10) x [(annual value of contract) – (annual value 
of distribution of DND-owned inventory)]. 

Furthermore, the calculation at Appendix 3 of the Annex F – Performance Measurement Framework 
PIM 2: Aboriginal procurement will be modified as follows: 

% Aboriginal procurement = (annual value of Aboriginal procurement) / [(annual value of contract) – 
(annual value of distribution of DND-owned inventory)] x 100. 
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Question 91 

Given all RFP extensions, can we obtain a new timeline on Contract Award (as per Amendment 003, 
OCFC2 Schedule, p. 14)? 

Answer 91 

MILESTONE DATE
Request for Proposal (RFP) 29 Aug 2019 – 2 June 2021 
Bid Evaluation June – August 2021 
TB Submission Process September 2021 – April 2022 
Contract Award (start of Phase 1) May 2022 
Inventory transfer from 7 CFSD – Stage 1 November 2022 – May 2023 
IOC – Delivery to Clothing Stores (start of Phase 2) May 2023 
Inventory transfer from 25 CFSD – Stage 2 May – August 2023 
Inventory transfer from current DND suppliers or DND 
depots – Stage 3 

May 2023 – June 2026 

FOC – Delivery to both Clothing Stores and direct to 
members (start of Phase 3) 

May 2024 

Question 92 

Annex B, 2.4.3: As the delay may be solely due to Canada finalizing the Contract Amendment, would it 
be possible to change the clause to add that the firm unit prices will be applicable retroactively 
following a delay caused by Canada? 

Answer 92 

Canada has considered your request however the requirement remains the same.  

Question 93 

What has driven the change to now require submittal of bi-monthly invoices? 
Would Canada consider modifying the requirement to allow the Contractor to submit invoices on a 
monthly or bi-monthly basis as it choses? 

Answer 93 

Canada has considered your request, however the requirement remains the same. The Contractor 
must submit invoices bi-monthly (twice a month) as per 7.11.1 of Amendment #010.  

Question 94 

1. While supportive of allowing a renegotiation of Firm Unit Prices and Hourly Rates after the 5th, 
10th and 15th anniversaries, how will Canada prevent unreasonable increases during these 
renegotiations (eg, bidding unreasonably low prices/rates for first five years to win the contract, 
and then making it up it over the remaining 15 years)? 

 

2. Please confirm there will be no adjustments to the Management Fee after the 5th, 10th and 15th

anniversaries. 

Answer 94 

Canada is still reviewing this question and will provide an answer in the next amendment.



Sollicitation No. - N° de l'invitation Amd. No. - N° de la modif. Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur 
W8486-206245/A 013 PR766 
Client Ref. No. - N° de réf. du client File No. - N° du dossier CCC No./N° CCC - FMS No./N° VME 
W8486-206245 W8486-206245  

Page 6 of 7

Question 95 

Why is there now only 1 point allocated to in-house manufacturing (previously there was an additional 
point available for in-house manufacturing experience for the public sector)? Doesn’t this defeat the 
concept of Canadian content and sovereign capability? 

Answer 95 

Canada is committed to fostering its aboriginal businesses. As such, OCFC2 now requires that an 
Aboriginal procurement plan be part of the bidder’s submission. Evaluation points were reallocated to 
ensure that this requirement is highlighted. Although only one point is now allocated to in-house 
manufacturing, Canada believes that it is not contrary to its intent to promote Canadian content and 
sovereign capability. The winning bidder must still meet the Canadian content requirements, and this 
requirement can be met not only through in-house manufacturing but also by using the Canadian 
textile and apparel supply chain. 

Question 96 

Please explain why significant additional Performance Standards and Acceptable Quality Levels have 
been introduced?  
 
Throughout the Performance Management Framework, Canada has the right to unilaterally make 
changes (eg, to the KPIs, SPMs, PIMs) without the Contractor’s consent. Can changes to the 
Performance Management Framework be negotiated in good faith between both parties instead? 
Would Canada consider holding a working group to discuss potential changes to the Performance 
Management Framework in more detail? 

Answer 96 

Additional Performance Standards and Acceptable Quality Levels have been introduced to provide 
more clarity and transparency into Canada’s goals and objectives. Moreover, this further ensures that 
the Performance Measurement Framework (PMF) is defined to achieve an ongoing optimal balance of 
Performance, Value for Money, Flexibility and Economic Benefits. 

It is Canada’s intent that the performance assessment be a collaborative undertaking between Canada 
and the winning bidder. As per article 3.4 of the PMF, the Contractor may recommend changes to the 
metrics and the process; however, it is Canada’s sole discretion to implement those changes as 
Canada deems appropriate. 

Question 97 

Please provide/confirm the current estimate of the number of pallets of DND inventory that will be 
shipped to the Contractor, ideally broken down by Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3. Given the project 
slippage, is Stage 3 still expected to conclude by 2023? 

Answer 97 

Estimate as of January 14, 2021: Stage 1 – 1,840 pallets; Stage 2 – 920 pallets;  

Stage 3 will need to be assessed closer to the date. With the project slippage, Stage 3 may continue 
to take place until 2026.  
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Question 98 

Can the Joint Venture with a US firm for this project? Or is the request that all Joint Venture's remain 
Canadian owned businesses. Please confirm. 

Answer 98 

As indicated in the Request for Proposal Section 3.5.3, “The Bidder must certify at the time of bid 
closing that it is Canadian owned and controlled, or owned and controlled by foreign nationals from 
Canada’s Five Eyes allies, or a combination of them.” A joint venture with a US firm, is therefore 
acceptable. 

Question 99 

A question about submission protocol, is there any indication on what method is preferred? 

Answer 99 

Canada is still reviewing this question and will provide an answer in the next amendment.   

All other terms and conditions of the solicitation remain the same. 

A proposal already submitted may be amended prior to closing time by sending the amended 
correspondence to Bid Receiving, the envelope/fax bearing the Request for proposal  
No. W8486-206245/A and the closing date of June 2nd, 2021.
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